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Statement of Management's responsibility

The Management is required to prepare separate and consolidated financial statements, which give a true

and fair view of the financial position of Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo (the Company) and the Company

and associates, and results of their operations and cash flows, in accordance with applicable accounting

standards, and is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records to enable the preparation of such

separate and consolidated financial statements at any time. Management has a general responsibility for

taking such steps as are reasonably available to it to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent

and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Management is responsible for selecting suitable accounting policies to conform with applicable

accounting standards and then applying them consistently; making judgements and eslimates that are

reasonable and prudent; and preparing the financial statements on a going concem basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business.

The Management is responsible for the submission to the Supervisory Board of its annual report on the

Company together with the annual financial statements, following which the Supervisory Board is required

to approve the financial statements.

Separate and consolidated financial statements set out on pages 6 to 51 were authorised by the

Management on 9 April 2019 for issue to the Supervisory Board, and are signed below to signify this, on

behalf of the Company, by:

Signed on behalf of Management:

Bosna Reosiguranje d

Zm4a od Bosne 74

71000 Sarajevo

Bosnia and Hezegovina

6.*tot'tA
s-
i slnnlevo '



Deloitte. Deloitte d.o.o.
Zmaja od Bosne 12c
71000 Sarajevo
Bosnia and Herzegovina

Tel: +387 (0) 33 277 560
Faxi +387 (0) 33 271 561
www,deloitte.com/ba

lndependent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. (the "Company") and its associates (together the
"Group"), which comprise the statement of financial position of the Company and Group as at 31 December 2018, and

the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of
cash flows of the Company and Group for the year then ended, and notes including a summary of significant accountjng
policies and other explanations.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements truly and fairly present the financial position of the Company and

Group as at 31 December 2018, and their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with the lnternatlonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (lSAs). Our responsibilities under those

standards are further described in the paragraph Auditot's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements.
We are independent of the Company and Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our

audit of the financial statements in Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial

statements as a whole and in formjng our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of technical reserves (insurance reserves)

ln the consolidated and separate financial statements as at 31 Oecember 2018, technical reserves

amounted to KM 98,238 thousand, which comprises 84.8% of total liabilities of the Company (31 December
2017 . KM 94,923 thousand, 85.2%). The structure of technical reserves is as follows: reserve for reported

but not settled claims ("RBNS") KM 36,767 thousand, reserve for incurred but not reported and reactivated

claims ("lBNR') KM 43,880 thousand, and reserve for unearned premium KM 18,220 thousand.

Please refer to pages 25 to 27 (Summary of significant accounting policies), page 28 (Accounting estimates

and key sources of estimation uncertainty), and Note 27 Assets and liabilities from insurance operations.

D€lo tte refe.s to one or more of D€lofte TolcheTohmatsu Lihited, a LJ( private company limited by 9!6rantee ("DITL" or "Detotte cobat"), its network of
memberrrms, and ther reiated e.trtes (collectively, the Deloitte Network") DTTL and each of its nemberfirmsare reqatty sepa.ate and i;d€pend€.t e.tiries.
DTiL does not provide seru ces to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/balabout for a more detailed descr ption of DTTL and id member frms.

ln Bosnia and H€Eeqovina, the serui.es are provided by Delortte Ltd. and oeioitte Advisory Sedices Lld. (jorntty referred to as {Deloitte Bos.ra and Hez€qovina,,)
wh ch are affiliat€s or Delotte Cenlral Europe rloldinqs Lrmlted, Oeortte Bosn a and HeEegovina s on€ ofth€ ead n9 professiona seruLces orqan zarions ;the
country provid ng sedic€s in.udit/ tax, co.sulting/ fnancaladvisory..d ega serulces through over 60 nationa and speci. zed expatriate prclessiona s.

O 2019 Deoitte Bosnia and liezeqov n.



Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Reserves for insurance contracts represent the most
individually significant liability of the Company in the
statement of financial position. Their valuation
involves a significant judgement of uncertain future
outcomes as it requires the Management to develop
complex and subjective assumptions that are used as
input variables in the model for calculation of reserves
for insurance contracts that uses the standard
actuarial methodology.

The lilanagement's estimate of IBNR and RBNS is
highly complex. Various methods can be used, and
often standard actuarlal models need to be adjusted
to specific circumstances, and such adjustments also
require specific judgment. lvlanagement evaluates
the IBNR using a complex model based on key
assumptions, including those on the appropriateness
of using hjstorical trends in predicting patterns of
future trends in claims and their settlement. ln
addition, the Company applies the terms of lhe
reinsurance contracts, and for large claims uses
expert assessment to develop its own RBNS
estimales.

ln addition, at each reporting date, the Company is
required to carry out a liability adequacy test
(hereinafter "LAT") in order to determine whether
recognized reserves for insurance contracts, less any
related assets, are sulfclent to cover the claims
arising from reinsurance contracts. The test is based
on the best estimate of the present value of future
cash flows arising from contract assets and liabilities,
as well as taking into account claims and cost
estimates.

ln the event that the LAT test shows that the amount
of the reserve for insurance contracts is insufficient.
the difference is recognized in profit or loss in
correspondence with the decrease in the value of
financial assets (receivables from the counterparts or
by increase of liabilities arising from reinsurance
contracts.

Relatively small changes in these assumptions can
have a signiflcant impact on the recognized amounts
of reserves. The integrity and accuracy of data based
on actuarial projections also represents the area of
our focus in the audit.

With respect to the aforementioned, we believe that
valuation of technical reserves is a key risk in our
audit and a key audit matter.

Our approach to the key audit matter

Our audit procedures related to this area included,
inter alia:

. Assessment whether the methodology applied by
the Company when calculating technical reserves
is jn accordance with relevant regulatory and
reporting requirements, as well as assessmenl of
the consistency of its application during the
reporting period;

With the assistance of our own actuaries:

. harmonization of data on claims which are the
base for actuarial projections with accounting
records and (in total and by type of insurance).

. Performing independent valuation of technical
reserves for claims for selected types of
insurance, in such a way that we conducted the
following on a selected sample, inter alia:

c assessed the methodology applied by the
Company and tested the applied ratio of costs,
and compared it with the ratio of costs used in
calculation of IBNR reserves, and verified
whether the Company used the adequate
form u la;

c made an independent recalculation of IBNR
reserves, and compared the amounts received
with those recognized by the Company, and
seek explanations for significant differences.

. Assessing the adequacy of IBNR and RBNS
reserves by comparing actual amounts in
previous periods with previous forecasts of claims
movements;

. Assessed whether the data delivered by the
independent actuary delivered to Deloifte's expert
team are reconciled with the financial statements.

. Reviewed the information disclosed in the
financial statements of the Company to assess
their sufflciency in the sense of intelligibility of the
transaction to the users of the financial
statements.



Other matters

Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 were audited by another
auditor, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 3o march 201g.

Responsibilities of the Management Board and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Management Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the accompanying
financial statements in accordance with the IFRS, and for such intemal control as the Management Board
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Management Board is responsible for assessing the Company's
and Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company and Group or to cease operations, or has no realistjc alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company's and Group's financial
reporling process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an independent auditor's report
that includes our opinlon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with lSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with lSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audjt procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's and Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audlt evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's and Group's ability to continue as a

going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention

in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the dale of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company and Group to cease lo continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence concerning the financial statements of group

companies or their business activities in order to express an opinion on the consolidated financial

stalements. We are responsable for conducting, overseeing and performing the audit of the Group.

We have sole responsibility for the audit opinion expressed.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and signiflcant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Sabina Softi6.

Sead BahtanofiC, Director€nd licensed auditor

,/-

Deloitte d.o.o.

Zmaja od Bosne 12c

Sarajevo, Bosnia and Herzegovina

9 April 2019

Sabina Softi6, Partner and licensed auditor

Deloitte

rci 4200!1?380000



Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Statement of profit or loss

for the year ended 31 December
(All amounts arg expressed r? KM, unless otherwise stated)

Reinsurance revenue
Premium revenue ceded to
reinsurers, net

Net premium revenue

Reinsurance claims and expenses
Reinsurance claims and expenses
covered by reinsurers, net

Net claims expenses
Commission income

Commission expenses

Net commission expenses

Net income from insurance

lnvestment income 7,8

Other operating income I
General and administrative expenses 10

lnvestment losses 11

Other expenses 12

Foreign exchange losses, net

Share in profit of associates 17

Profit before tax

lncome tax expense

Net profit

Earnings per share

Company and Company and
associates associates

Notes 2018 2017

5 52,219,324 51,967,035

5 (29,284,057\ (27,103,864)

22,935,767 24,863,171

6

6

(27,834,630)

1'l,206,403

(16,628,2271

6,800,408

(9,320,480)

(2,520,O72)

3,786,968

982,078
'109,291

(3,049,401)

(24,077)

(41 ,273,071)

24,331 ,153

(16,941,918)

6,104,728

(9,841 ,762\

(3,737,0341

4,184,219

1 ,613,540
703,356

(3,938,800)

(337,000)

(4,639)

(10,649)

Company
2018

52,219,324

(29 ,284 ,057)

22,935,267

(27 ,834,630)

11,206,403

('t6,628,2271

6,800,408

(9,320,480)

(2,520,07z',t

3,786,968

982,078

109,291

(3,049,401)

(24,077)

Company
2017

51,967,035

(27 ,103,864\

24,863,171

(41,273,O71)

24,331,153

(16,941,918)

6,104,728

(9,841,762)

(3,737,0341

4,',|84,2',t9

13,101,204

703,356

(3,938,800)

(337,000)

(4,63e)

(10,649)

13

31 4 ,720 348 ,483

2,'t19,579 2,558,510

(166,817) (1,398,732)

1,952,762 1,,159,778

104,73 678,33

1,804,859

(166,817)

,1,638,042

87,85

13,697,691

(1,398,732)

12,298,959

659,6414

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December
(All amounts are exprcssed in KM, unless otnerwise sfated)

Company Company
and and

assoclates associates Company Company
Notes 20'18 2017 2018 20',t7

Net profit for the year 1,952,762 '1,'159,778 '1,638,042 12,298,959

Other com pre hensive inc o me

Items that will not be
su bseq ue ntl y rccl assified to
statement of profit or loss

Items that will be subsequently
reclassified to statement of profit
or loss when specific conditions
are met
Net changes in fair value of
financial assets available for sale 18 304,029 477,202 304,029 477,202

304,029 477,202 477,202

Total comprehensive income 2,25A,791 1,536,980 'l,942,071 '12,776,161

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Statement of financial position

for the year ended 31 December
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise stated)

Company Company
and and

associates associates

Notes3l December 3l December 31
2018 2017

Company

December
2018

3,973,414

3,192,462

1 ,878,529
3,019,551

3,164,347

4,753,658

37,493,614

72,356,474

Company

31 December
2017

4,084,068

3,324,047

1,878,529

3,O17,612

5,860,318

2,750,503
a1 711 )94

70,698,828

13,084,793

291,111

11 070

3,363,446

150,086,s23

6,339,300

19,810,376

224,340

12,298,959

38,672,975

94,922,822

9,649,179

1,452,620

3,721,595

1,'t53,412

513,920

111,413,548

150,086,523

ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets

lnvestment property

Investment in associates
Deferred acquisition costs

Financial assets available-for-sale
Financial assets held-to-maturity

Deposits
Reinsurance assets (reinsurers'
share in reinsurance liabilities)
Reinsurance premium
receivables and for claims
recovered by reinsurers

Other receivables

Corporate tax receivables

Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Reserves
Revaluation reserves for financial
assets available-for-sale

Retained earnings

LIABILITIES

Reinsurance liabilities
Reinsurance premium and claims
payables

Deferred reinsurance commission

Other liabilities

Tax liabilities

Provisions for employee benefits

TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

3,973,414 4,084,068

3192/62 3,324,047

4,321 ,530 4,006,810

3,019,551 3,017,612
3,164,347 5,860,3'18

4,753,658 2,750,503
37,493,6'14 41 ,721 ,289

72,356,474 70,698,828

16,252,543 13,084,793 16,252,543

208,774 291,111 208,774

249,513 - 249,513
13,612 1't,979 13,612

2,878,556 3,363,446 2,878,556

151,878,048 152,214,804 149,435,047

6,339,300 6,339,300 6,339,300

20,098,815 19,810,376 20,098,815

528,369 224,340 528,369

9,081,043 14,427 ,240 6,638,042

36,047,527 40,801,256 33,604,526

98,238,097 94,922,822 98,238,097

12,490,325 9,649,179 12,490,325

1,356,017 1,452,620 1,356,0.17

3,332,087 3,721,595 3,332,088
- 1,153,412

. 413,994 513,920 413,994
115,830,521't1't,413,548 115,830,521

151,878,048 152,214,804 149,435,047

15

to

17

20

18

19

28

22
)1

24

25

zo

28

27

20

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise stated)

Company and associates

As at 31 December 2016

Dividend payment

Transfer to regulatory reserves

Net protit

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2017

Dividend payment

Transfer to regulatory reserves

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2018

Share capital

6,339,300

Reserves

19,810,316

Revaluation
reserves for

financial assets
available-for-

sale

(252,8621

477 ,202

Retained
earnings

16,596,960

(3,329,498)

(60)

1,159,778

Total

42,493,7',14

(3,329,498)

1,159,778

477 ,202

1 ,636,980

40,801,256

(7,010,520)

1,952,762

60

477.202 1.159.778

6,339,300 19,8'10,376 224,340 't4,427,24O

(7,010,520)

(288,439)

1,952,762
288,439

304.029 304.029

3U,029

6,339,300 20,098,815 528,369

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1,952,762

9,081,043

2,256,791

36,047,527



Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise stated)

Company

As at 31 December 2016

Dividend payment

Transfer to regulatory reserves

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2017

Dividend payment

Transfer to regulatory reserves

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Total com p rehe nsive income

As at 31 Oecember 2018

Share capital

6,339,300

Reserves

19,810,316

Revaluation
teserves for

financial assets
available-fo1-

sale

(252,8621

Retained
earnings

3,329,498

(3,329,498)

(60)

12,298,959

12,298,959

12,298,959

(7,010,520)

(288,439)

1,638,042

Total

29,226,252

(3,329,498)

12,298,959

477 ,202

12,776,161

38,672,975

(7,010,520)

1 ,638,042

477 ,202

477.202

6,339,300 19,810,376 224,340

60

288,439

304,029 304.029

304,029

6,339,300 20,098,815 528,369

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these llnancial statements

1,638,042

6,638,042

1,942,071

33,604,526

10



Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2017
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise stated)

Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
- depreciation and amortization
- allowance for impairment losses on premium and for
claims recovered from reinsurers

- collected written off receivables
- write-off of irreversible losses on financial assets
available-for-sale

- transfer to regulatory reseryes
- share in proflt of associates
- provision for unearned premium, net
- provision for incurred but not reported claims, net
- provision for reported but not settled claims, net
- provision for bonuses, djscounts and premiums, net
- deferred acquisition costs, net
- provisron for employee benefits. net
- gain from disposal of tangible assets
- gain from sale of financial instruments
- gain from disposal of shares in associates
- dividend income recognized in proflt or loss
- interest income recognized in profit or loss

Operating cash flow before movements in working capital
Changes in:
- reinsurance premium receivables and claims recovered
from re-insurers

- other assets and receivables
- reinsurance premium and claims payable

- other liabilities

Cash generated from operations
lncome tax paid

Net cash from operating activities
lnvesting activities
Purchases of property and equrpment
Proceeds from sale of investment property

Proceeds from sale of tangrble assets
Proceeds from sale of financial asseis available-for-sale
Proceeds from sale of shares in associates
Dividends received
lnterest received
Purchase of financial assets held-to-maturity
Purchase of financial assets available-for-sale
Decrease / (increase) in deposits

Net cash trom / (used in) investing activities
Financing activities
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Company
and

Note associates
2018

2.119,579

'10 365,954

12

I (1,706)

11 -

17 (314,720)

5 488,846
6 1,163,901
6 (433,329)

6 438.211
20 (98,542)

9,'10 (99,926)

7. 10

7,I (1s,914)

7,8
7,8 (91,763)

7,I (657,327)

2,863,264

22 (3,166,044)

23 80,705
27 2,841,146
29 (1,543,296)

1,075,775
13 (416,330)

659,445

15 (123,715)'

to -

15
'18 3,0'15,9't4

7,17
7 91,763
21 664,004
'19 (2,003,100)

21 4,220,943

5,865,809

(7,010,144)

(7,010,1441

(484,890)

3,363,i146

2,878,556

Company
and

associates Company
2017 2018

2,558,510

37 5,332

4,639
(701,505)

337,000
60

(348,483)
(809,356)

733,842
887,963

(1,100,364)

217,191

35,270
(3.542)

1,804,859

365,954

(1 706)

488,846

1,163,901

i'433,329)
438,211
(98,542)
(e9,s26)

(15,914)
(445,454)
(158,933) (91,763)
(786,36e) (657,s27r'

795,801 2,863,264

(1,469,132) (3,166,044)

19,170 80,705
2,098,164 2,841,146
1,399,68'1 (1,543,296)

2,843,684 1,075,775
(84,798) (416,330)

2,758,886 659,445

(64,263)

15,000
13,555

1123,715)

- 3,015,914
13,351j24

158,933 91,763
785,990 664.004

1352,2121 (2,003,100)
(3,500,000)

(1 1,639,417) 4,220,943

11,231,290' 5,865,809

(3,329,498) (7,010,144)

(3.329.498) (7.010.1441

(1,801,902) (484,890)

5,16s,348 3,363,445

3,363,446 2,878.555

Company
2017

13,697,691

375,332

4,639
(701,505)

337,000
60

(809,356)

733,842
887,963

(1,100,364)

217,191
35,270
(3,s42)

(1 1,933,I 18)
(158,933)
(786,369)

795,801

(1,469,132)
19.170

2,098,164
1,399,681

2,U3,684
(84,798)

2,758,886

(64,263)

15,000

'r:-,ru, ,,ro
158,933
785,990

(352,212)
(3,500,000)

(1 1,639,417)

(r,23r,290)

(3,329,498)

(3,329,498)

(r,801,902)

5,165,348

3,363,446

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo (the "Company") was registered in the Federation of Bosnia and

Hezegovina as a shareholders' company. The principal activities of the Company include reinsurance of
life and non-life insurance.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 25 employees (2017.27).

Management

ZIatan Filipovi6

Hasan Delie

Bakir Pilav

Edin Muhovid

Kornelije Vujnovie

Member

lvlember since 12 June 2017

Director

Executive director for finance until 31 May 201 8

Executive director for flnance since 1 June 2018

Superyisory Board

lsmet Hadzi6 President

Enisa Babi6 Member

Midhad Saldin Member

Jasenko Karahmet Member since

Semiha Repak Member since 12 June 20'17

Audit Committee

Alma Kozari6 President

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

2.1 lnitial application of new amendments to the existing standards effective for the current
reporting period

The following new amendments to the existing standards issued by the lnternational Accounting Standards

Board (IASB) are effective for the current reporting period:

. IFRS I "Financial lnstruments" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

IFRS I Financial lnstruments, which will have a signiflcant impact on the classification and measurement of

financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company, as well as measurement of expected credit losses,

has been fully completed and issued by the lnternational Accounting Standards Board in 2014 with

mandatory application from 1 January 2018. According to the standard, reporting entities should disclose

key determinants of the methodological approach used in the application of IFRS I as well as effects on

balance sheet items and capital level on the first day of application (1 January 2018) in the financial

statements for 2017. The Company meets the criteria for a temporary exemption from IFRS I and intends

to defer the application of IFRS 9 until the effective date of the new insurance contract standard (IFRS 17)

effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 (as described below).
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Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December2018
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise stated)

2, ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDAROS (CONTINUED)

2.1 lnitial application of new amendments to the existing standards effective for the current

reporting period

. IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" and further amendments (effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

. Amendments to IFRS 2 "Share-based Payment" - Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

. Amendments to IFRS 4 "lnsurance Contracts" - Applying IFRS 9 "Financial lnstruments" with IFRS 4

"lnsurance Contracts" (etfective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 or when

IFRS 9 "Financial lnstruments" is applied first time),

Amendments to IFRS 4 lnsurance Contracts

ln September 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 4 to resolve issues arising from different

effective dates of IFRS 9 and a new insurance contracts standard (IFRS 17).

The amendments introduce two alternative options of applying IFRS 9 for entities issuing contracts within

the scope of IFRS 4: a temporary exemption and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption enables

eligible entities to defer the implementation date of IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January

2Q21 and continue to apply IAS 39 to financial assets and liabilities. An entity may apply the temporary

exemption from IFRS I if: (i) at has not previously applied any version of IFRS 9, other than only the

requirements for the presentation of gains and losses on financial liabilities designated as FVPL; and (ii) its

activities are predominantly connected with insurance on its annual reporting date that immediately

precedes 1 April 2016.

During the year the Company carried out insurance predominance test and concluded that its activlties

were primarily related to insurance as at 31 December 2016. During 2018 no significant changes occurred

in the Company's activities requiring re-evaluation. The Company intends to apply a temporary exemption

from IFRS I and continue to apply IAS 39 in the next reporting period.

. Amendments to IAS 40 "lnvestment Property" - Transfers of lnvestment Property (effective for

annual periods beginning on or atter 1 January 2018),

. Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 due to "lmprovements to IFRSS (cycle 2014-2016)" resulting from

the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28) primarily with a view to

removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording (amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are to be

applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

. IFRIC 22 "Forcign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration" (effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 20181.
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Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2. ADOPTION OF NEWAND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

2.2 New standards and amendments to existing standards in issue not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following new standards, amendments to
existing standards and new interpretation were in issue, but not yet etfective:

o IFRS 16 "Leases" (effective for annual periods beginning on or afte|l January 2019),

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and replaced by IAS 17 Leases. IFRS 16 prescribes the principtes for
recognising, measuring, presenting and publishing the leases and requires the lessees to take into account
ail leases within a single accounting model similar to the financial lease accounting under IAS 17. The
Standard includes two exceptions from the recognition of lessors - Iease of assets of low value (e.g.

personal computers) and short{erm rentals (i.e. leases up to 12 months). At the beginning of the lease, the
lessee will recognize the obligation to pay the lease and the property that represents the right to use the
asset during the lease period (that is, the rjght to use property).

The lessee will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease and the depreciation
cost on the right-of-use asset. IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Earlier application is permitted but not before the entity appties tFRS 1S.

The Company is curently reviewing existing lease agreements and analyses the potential effects of the
standards on the flnancial statements.

. IFRS lT "lnsurance Contracts" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021),

ln May 2017 , the IASB issued IFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts, a comprehensive new accounting standard for
insurance contracts that includes recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure, replacing
IFRS 4 lnsurance Contracts.

ln contrast to IFRS 4 requirements, which are largely based on the monitoring of previous local accounting
policies for measurement purposes, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model (the general model) for
insurance contracts, supplemented by a variable fee approach for contracts with direct participation features
that are substantially investment-related service contracts, and the premium allocation approach mainly for
short-duration which typically applies to certain non-life insurance contracts.

The main features of the new accounting model for insurance contracts are, as follows;
. The measurement of the present value of fulure cash flows, incorporating an explicit risk adjustment,

remeasured every reporting pedod.

. A Contractual Service Margin (CSM) is measured as a positive difference (net inflow) between the
rlsk-weighted present value of expected inllows and outflows for a certain group of contracts. As
such, it represents at the beginning of a contract the expected profitabillty of the contract and is
recognised in profit or loss over the entire period.

. Certain changes in the expected present value of future cash flows are adjusted against the CSM

and thereby recognised in profit or loss over the remaining contractual service period.
. The effect of changes in discount rates will be reported in either profit or loss or other comprehensive

income, determined by an accounting policy choice.
o The recognition of insurance revenue and insurance service expenses in the statement of

comprehensive income based on the concept of services provided during the period.
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Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise statedJ

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

2.2 New standards and amendments to existing standards in issue not yet adopted (continued)

. Amounts that the policyholder will always receive, regardless of whether an insured event happens

are not presented in profit or loss, but are recognised directly on the balance sheet.

. lnsurance services results (earned revenue less incurred claims) are presented separately from the

insurance finance income or expense.

. Extensive disclosures to provide information on the recognised amounts from insurance contracts

and the nature and extent of risks arising from these contracts.

IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 202'l, with comparative

figures required. Early applicatjon is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or

before the date it first appljes IFRS 17. Retrospective application is required. However, if full retrospective

application for a group of insurance contracts is impracticable, then the entity is required to choose either a

modified retrospective approach or a fair value approach. The Company plans to adopt a new standard on

the effective date together with IFRS L
. Amendments to IFRS 3 "Business Combinations" - Definition of a Business (effective for business

combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting

period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the

beginning of that period).

. Amendments to IFRS 9 "Financial lnstruments" - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensataon

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

. Amendments to IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" and IAS 28 "lnvestments in Associates

and Joint Ventures" - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an lnvestor and its Associate or Joinl

Venture and further amendments (effective date deferred lndefinitely until the research project on the

equity method has been concluded),

. Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" and IAS I "Accounting Policies,

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" - Definition of l\4aterial (effective for annual periods

beglnning on or after 1 January 2020),

. Amendments to IAS 19 "Employee Benefits" - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

. Amendments to IAS 28 "lnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures" - Long-term lnterests in

Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

. Amendments to various standards due to "lmprovements to IFRSS (cycle 2015-2017)" resulting from

the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23) primarily with a view

to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording (effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2019),



Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise stated)

2. ADOPTION OF NEWAND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

2.2 New standards and amendments to existing standards in issue not yet adopted (contlnued)
. Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

. IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatments" (effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2019).

The Company has elected not to adopt these new standards, amendments to existing standards and new

interpretation in advance of their effective dates. The Company anticipates that the adoption of these

standards, amendments to existing standards and new interpretalions will have no material impact on the

financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application.
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Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(All amounts are expressed,n KM, unless otheN'/ise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance wlth lnternational Financial Reporting

Standards ("lFRS"), as published by the lnternational Accounting Standards Board.

These flnancial statements consist of separate and consolidated financial statements, where investments in

associates in the consolidated financial statements of the Company and associates are presented using the

equity method, while in the separate financial statements of the Company these investments are stated at

cost less impairment if there are any indications of impairment.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain for certain

properties and financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of

each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fajr value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly

observable or estimated using another valuation technjque. ln estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants

would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such

basis, except the measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net

realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

ln addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the

significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the Company can access at the measurement date; fair value indicators are those derived from

quoted prices in active markets;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The financial statements are presented in Convertible marks since that is the functional currency of the
Company. The Convertible mark (Klil) is officially tied to the Euro (EUR 1 = KM 1.95583).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires Management to make estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and their reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognized in the period in which the estjmate ls revised if the revision affects only that period

or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF STcNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Basis of preparation (continued)

lnformation on amounts where signiflcant uncertainty exists in their estimate and critical judgments in

applying accounting policies that have the most impact on the amounls djsclosed in these financial

statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Basis of consolidation

ln accordance with IFRS 10, as the Company has investments in associates, the Company prepares

consolidated fi nancial statements.

lnvestments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary

nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and

operating policy decisions ofthe investee but is not control orjoint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the financial statements of the

Company and associates using the equity method of accounting from the date that significant influences

commences until the date the significant influences ceases, except when the investment is classified as

held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinued Operations".

Under the equity method, investments in associates in the financial statements are carried at cost as

adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Company's share of the net assets of the associate, less any

impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Company's

interest in that associate which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the

Company's net investment in the associate are not recognised unless it has further liabilities towards an

associaie or has made payments in favour of an associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable

assets and liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The

goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of

the investment. Any excess of the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and

Iiabilities after reassessment is recognised immediately in profit or Ioss.

lnvestments in associates in the financial statements of the Company are stated at cost less any

impairment in the value of individual investments if needed.

Dividends received from associates are recognized as a reduction in investments in associates in the

Company's consolidated statement of financial position and also as dividend income in the Company's

separate statement of profit and loss.

Unrealized gains from transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated to the extent of

the Company's share in the associate. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless there js evidence of a

decrease in the value of the transferred property in the market.
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Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF StGNTF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|CIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Gross reinsurance premiums are recognised as revenue on a pro-rata basis over the periods of the

respective contracts of reinsurance.

Reinsurance premiums, which are subject to adjustments, are estimated based upon available information.

Any variances from the estimates are recorded in the periods in which they become known.

lnterest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective

interest rate.

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are converted into KM at the rates of exchange prevailing

on the dates of the transactions. lvlonetary assets and liabilities denominated in such foreign currencies are

translated at the rates prevailing on the reporting period date due to official exchange rate of Central Bank

of Bosnia and Herzegovina. Profits and losses arising on exchange are included in net profit or loss for the

period.

Employee benefits

On behalf of its employees, the Company pays personal income tax and contributions for pension,

disability, health and unemployment insurance, on and from salaries, which are calculated as per the set

legal rates during the course of the year on the gross salary. The Company pays the tax and contributions

in the favour of the institutions of the Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina (on federal and cantonal level).

ln addition, meal allowances, transport allowances and vacation bonuses are paid in accordance with the

local legislation. These expenses are recorded in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the

salary expense is incurred.

Jubilee awards

The Company pays to its employees certain benefits for completing long service (jubilee awards) in

accordance with local laws and its internal Rulebook on employment. Jubilee award payments range from 1

to 5 average salaries paid to the employee in the preceding 3 months for tenure from 10 to 40 years.

Reti reme nt severance payments

According to the local legislation and internal Rulebook on employment, the Company makes retirement

severance payments of minimum 6 average monthly salaries paid in the Federation of Bosnla and

Hezegovina based on latest data published by the Federal Office of Statistics.

The Company records the costs of jubilee awards and retirement severance payments, when they become

due.

Taxation

lncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current lncome tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as

reported in the statement of profit or loss, because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable

or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the reporting period date.
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(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otherwise stated)

3. SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferrecl lncome tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount

of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation

of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are

generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the

extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting period date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

asset to be recovered.

Oeferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled

or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except when it

relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in

equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property and equipment are started at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment

losses. Cost includes the purchase price and directly associated cost of bringing the asset to a working

condition for its intended use. Maintenance and repairs, replacements and improvements of minor

importance are expensed as incurred. Significant improvements and replacement of assets are capitalised.

Gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are included in the statement

of profit or loss in the period they occur.

Properties in the course of construction are carried at cost, less impairment loss, if any. lnvestment property

is accounted for under the cost model and the accounting treatment after initial recognition follows that

applied to property and equipment.

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation ls calculated so

that it will reduce book values to their estimated realisable values over their estimated useful lives, which

are as follows:

2018
33.3 years (3%)

4 to 6.67 years (15%-25Yo)
3 to 5 years (20Yo-33.3Yo\

Buildings
Equipment
lT equipment

2017
33.3 years (3%)

4 to 6.67 years (15o/o-25%)
3 to 5 years (20%-33.3%)

The Company reassesses useful lives of its property and equipment annually. ln 2017 the Company revised

its estimate of useful lives of property, plant and equipment as stated in the table above, which are

applicable as of 'l January 2017. As of that date, property, plant and equipment are depreciated under new

rates. As a result of this change in accounting estimate, the annual depreciation cost has decreased by KM

28 thousand.

Gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of tangible assets are recognized in the statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income for the period they occur in.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)

lmpairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting period date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to

determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. lf any such

indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price and value in use. ln assessing value in use, the

estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre{ax discount rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

lf the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount

of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the

revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in

prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant

asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation increase.

lntangible assets

lntangible assets are valued at purchase costs and amortized over their useful lives using the straight-line

method.

2018 20'.t7

lntangible assets 5 years (20%) 5 years (20olo)

The Company annually evaluates the useful life of intangible assets.

lnvestment property

lnvestment property, which is property held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreclation, is

measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Depreciation commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use. Depreciation is calculated based on the estimated based on the estimated

useful lives of the applicable assets, which is as follows:

2018 2017

lnvestment property - buildings 33.3 years (3%) 33.3 years (3%)

The Company annually evaluates the useful life of investment property.
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3. SUMMARY OF StcNtFlcANT ACCOUNTING pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are injtjally measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financlal liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

a) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
investment is under a contract whose terms require delavery

established by the market concerned.

date where the purchase or sale of an

of the instrument within the timeframe

Financial assets are classifled into the following specified categories: financjal assets as "at fajr value
through profit or loss" (FVTPL), "available-for-sale" (AFS), "held{o-maturity investments", and.loans and
receivables".

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. Currently, the Company has no financial assets at FVTPL.

Effective i nte rest m eth od

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exacfly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

lncome is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
designated as at FVTPL.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as'loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortlzed cosl using the effective interest method less any impairment. lnterest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

F i n a n c i a I assets av a i I a bl e-f o r-sal e

Financial assets available-for-sale is non-derivative financial assets which is classified in this category or is
not classified in any other category. lt is intended to be held for a whlle, but it can be sold in response to
liquidity needs or changes in interest rates, prices, and so. lt includes stocks and investments in investment
funds.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

a) Financial asseG (continued)

F i n a n c i al a ss ets av ai I a b Ie -f o r-sa I e (co nti n u ed)

Listed and unlisted shares held by the Company that are traded in an active market are classified as being

AFS and are stated at fair value. For such investments a reasonable estimate of fair value is determined by

reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same or is based on

the expected cash flows or the underlying net asset base of the investment. lnvestments whose fair value

cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity in the investments

revaluation reserve with the exception oi impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest

method and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, which are recognised directly in profit

or loss.

Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised in the investments revaluation reserve is inciuded in profit or loss for the period.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the Company's right to receive

the dividends is established.

The fair value of AFS monetary assets denominaled in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign

currency and translated at the spot rate at the reportjng period date. The change in fair value attributable to

translation differences that result from a change in amortized cost of the asset is recognized in profit or loss,

and other changes are recognized in equity.

Hel d-to-m aturity i nve stm e nts

Bonds with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the Company has the positive

intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held{o-maturity investments. Held{o-maturity

investments are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment, with

revenue recognized on an effectlve yield basis. This financial assets includes Federation of BiH bonds.

lmpairment of financra, assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting period date. Financial assets

are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after

the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been

impacted.

For untisted shares classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline in the fai value of the security

below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. For all other financial assets, including

redeemable notes classified as AFS, objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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s. SUMMARY OF StcNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

a) Financial assets (continued)

lmpairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impalrment is the difference between the

asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial

asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the finaDcial asset is reduced by the impairment loss through the use of an

allowance account. When a receivable is consjdered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance

account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance

account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

With the exception of AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss

decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was

recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that

the carrying amount of the investmenl at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortised cost would have been had the impajrment not been recognised.

ln respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognized through profit or loss are not

reversed through proflt or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised

directly in equity.

Derecognition of tinancial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

asset expire; or it transfers the flnancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

asset to another company. lf the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained

interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the

substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilitles "at FVTPL" or "other financial liabilities". as at

the reporting date, the Company had no financial liabilities at FVTPL
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3. SUMMARY OF StGN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

b) Financial liabilitles and equity instruments issued by the Company (continued)

Financ ial I i abil ities (conti n uecl)

Othe r fi nancial liabilitie s

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest method is a method of

calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant

period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through

the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

De recoo n ition of fin a ncia I I i abil ities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are

discharged. cancelled or they expire.

Reinsurance contracts

The Company issues reinsurance contracts for the transfer of reinsurance or linance risk. These contracts

include contracts on reinsurance of insurance portfolios from accidents, property reinsurance, reinsurance

from responsibility and short-term life reinsurance contracts.

lnsurance from responsibility protects the jnsured individuals from the risk of inflicting damage upon third

parties as a result of thelr activities. This type of reinsurance covers events specified in the contract. A
typical example of this type of insurance is product responsibility insurance.

Property insurance provides compensation to the insured person for any damages jnflicted upon his/her

property, or for a decrease in its value. lnsured persons who perform business activities using insured

property can also be compensated for a loss in profit caused by an inability to use the insured property. A

typical example of this type of insurance is insurance against fire and other perils that property can be

exposed to.

lnsurance against accidents protects insured persons and/or members of their family from the

consequences of death or disability caused by a calamity. Should the calamity result in the death or
disability of the insured person, they or their families receive a specified compensation to alleviate the
consequences of the calamity.

Written premiums

Gross written premiums for non-life business include all policies written during the accounting period that
came out from reconciliation of reinsurance accounts with partners - cadent, irrespective of whether these
amounts relate wholly or partially to subsequent accounting periods. Retrocession premiums are calculaled
for accounting period by the same way as reinsurance premiums. lncome from non-life insurance premium

is recognized after reconciliation of Company's report with cadent.
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3. SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Reinsurance contracts (continued)

Unearned premiums

Unearned premiums are calculated for reinsurances in which reinsurance coverage lasts after accounting

period, since accounting and reinsurance periods are not the same. Unearned premium for nonlife
insurance is calculated using "pro rata temporis method". Basis for calculation is gross written premium. For

insurance with multi-annual reinsurance coverage, unearned premium is calculated for duration of each

insurance for the total amount that belongs to the future period. Calculation of unearned premium is done

based on technical premium.

Net unearned premium is gross premium decreased by portion recoverable from re-insurers. Participation

of reinsurers in unearned premiums is determined through existing reinsurance contracts. Provision for

unearned premium is presented separale from reinsurer's portion of unearned premium in the statement of

financial position.

Provisions for claims repofted but not settlecl

Provisions for reported but not settled claims relate to claims that incurred and were reported by the end of
the financial statement period for which the claim request has not been settled. The level of provisions is

determined by assessing each potential claim individually. ln determining the level of provisions, the

following is adhered to: conditions from the reinsurance contracts; documentation available in the file;

available standards and the experience of the evaluators; current court practices in determining claim

compensations. AII this is considered having in mind potential changes that can be expected to occur in the

forthcoming period and that might affect increases or decreases of these provisions.

Provision tor incurred but not reported claims

Provisions for claims that have incurred but are yet to be reported are calculated on the basis of the

Company's own statistical data on subsequently reported damages in past years. These calculations use

methods that rely on "run-off triangles". The provisions for reactivated claims are also formed on the basis

of statistical trends in the movement of these claims. The provision is calculated on the basis of the

expected number of reactivated claims in the forthcoming year and the average level of reactivated claims

for each insurance category.

These provisions are based on estimates and final liabilities may be lower or higher than available

resources for as long as the Management considers the estimate to be appropriate. ln accordance with

economic practice, adaptations of these estimates and the difference between the estimate and the

amounts actually paid out are recorded in the period in which they occur.

Mathematical reserve of life-insurance premium

The Company does not have reinsurance contracts based on which mathematical reserve should be

provided.

Rernsurance assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities from reinsurance conlracts are recognised when they become due. These amount

include re-insurers'assets and liabilities, compensations paid to and collected lrom agenls, brokers and

insurance policy holders.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Reinsurance contracts (continued)

Receivables and payables for reinsurance premium and claims payable

The Company cedes reinsurance with retrocessionists with the intention of limiting the potential loss.

Reinsurance contracts do not deprive the Company of any direct liabilities towards insurance companies.

Ceded premiums and recoverable amounts are presented in gross amount in the financial stalements

The Company signs reinsurance contracts with reinsuring companies on the basis of which the Company

receives compensation for losses arising from individual or group contracts. The Company reinsures

premiums of life and non-life insurance in order to limit its exposure to significant losses. Reinsurance

premiums and reinsuring parties' participation in claims are presented on appropriate accounts of the

statement of profit or loss. Reinsurance premiums are recorded in their gross non-discounted amounts.

On every reporting period date the Company re-evaluates the recorded amounts of its receivables on the

basis of insurance and reinsurance contracts in order to determine whether a loss has arisen from a

decrease in value of the said financial asset. lf there are indications that this is indeed the case, the value of

this loss is estimated and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs comprise compensations paid to agents for the services of acquisition of new insurances

in accordance with existing contracts. Compensation is paid on the basis of collected premium. Acquisition

costs are included in statement of profit or loss when the reconciliation of the underlying insurance

premiums is made. Acquisition costs are deferred in line with the movement in provision for unearned

premiums. Provision for unearned premium is presented separate from reinsurer's portion of unearned

premium in the statement of financial position.

Li a bi I ity adeq uacy test

On each reporting period date, the Company performs a liability adequacy test in order to determine

whether the reinsurance liabilities, less related assets, are sufficient to cover claims from reinsurance

contracts. When performing this test, the best estimates of future cash flows related to contractual assets

and liabilities, as well as estimates of claims and processing costs and income from investmenls related to

the contracts, are taken into consideration. Should the recognised liability turn out to be insufficient, its

value is increased by reducing the financial result for the period either by reducing the value of financial

assets (receivables from re-insurers) or by increasing provisions arising from reinsurance contracts.
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3. SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTCTES (CONTTNUED)

Capital and reseryes

Share capital

Ordinary share capital represents the nominal value of paid-in ordinary shares as equity.

Rese/ves

The statutory reserves represent accumulated apportions from retained earnings in accordance with

Companies Law of Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina. The statutory reserve may be used to cover

prior period losses if the losses are not covered by current year profits or if other reserves are not available.

Retained earnings

Profit for the period after appropriations to owners and allocations to other reserves are transferred to

retained earnings. Profit for the period after appropriations to owners is transferred to retained earnings.

Reval uation reserve for properties

Revaluation reserve for properties includes the cumulative etfects of increase jn the carrying amount of

properties arising on the revaluation of them.

Revaluation reserue for financial assets available for sale

Revaluation reserve for financial assets available for sale comprises changes in fair value of this assets.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are approved by the

Company's shareholders.

Earnings per share

The Company publishes basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, excluding ordinary

shares bought by the Company and classified as treasury shares.

Duting 2017 and2018 there were no dilution effects.

lf the number of ordinary or potential shares is increased as a result of a capitalization, bonus/free issue or

sharing of shares, or if the number decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic

and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

lf these changes occur after the statement of financial position date, but before issuing of financial

statements, calculation of the amount per share for these financial statements and any previous period is

based on the new number of shares.

28



Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Notes to financial statements
for the year ended 31 December2018
(All amounts are expressed in KM, unless otheMise stated)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

ln the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors are

required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are

based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons to accounting

estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period

or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision afiects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the reporting period date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimations are used but not limited

to the actuarial reserves, periods of amortization and remained property and equipment value, and

allowance for impairment of recejvables.

Estimation of uncertainty in relation to actuarial reserves

The most significant estimate in relation to the Company's flnancial statements relates to reserving. The

Company takes a reasonably prudent approach to reserving and applies regulations set by the Agency for

supervision of the insurance companies in Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina. The Company's policy is

to make a provision for unexpired risks arising from non-life insurance where the claims and deferred

acquisition costs likely to arise after the end of the financial year in respect of contracts concluded before

that date are expected to exceed the unearned premiums and premiums available under the contracts.

Such provision is included in the unearned premium.

Provisions for claims reported

The nature of business makes it difficult to predict with certainty the outcome of every particular claim and

the ultimate cost of every reported claim. Each reported claim is assessed on a separate, case by case

basis, with due regard to the claim circumstances, information available and historical evidence of the size

of similar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information

arises. The provisions are based on information currently available. However, the ultimate liabilities may

vary as a result of subsequent developments. The provision estimation difficulties also differ by class of

business due to differences in the underlying insurance contracl, claim complexity, the volume of claims

and the individual severity of claims. The risk associated with estimate of provisions for claims reported but

not settled is mitigated through reinsurance arrangements.

Provision for claims incurred but not reportecl (IBNR)

Provision for claims lncurred but not reported are estimated using actuarial methods. The source of data

used as inputs for the assumptions are internal, using detailed studies canied out by the Company. There is

more emphasis on current trends, and when in early years there is insuffacient jnformation to make [eliable

best estimate of claims development, prudent assumptions are used.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(coNflNUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) (continued)

Provision for claims incurred but not reported is based on calculations performed for each line of business.
For each line of business calculalions are based on statistical data for ciaims for last five years. For the
calculation of provjsion following methods are used:

. Chain ladder method,

. Average amount reported claims method,

. Average amount of expected claims methods,

. Bornhuetter-Fergusonmethod.

Based on quality and quantity of data, relevant method is applied. Management believes that the current

level of technical reserves is sufficient.

Useful lives ot property and equipment, and investment propefty

As described in the Note 3, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property and equipment, and
jnvestment property at the end of each annual reporting period.

Provision for claims arising from reinsurance contracts

At each reporting date, the Company reviews whether there is objective evldence of reinsurance contracts

receivables impairment. lmpairment of receivables arising from reinsurance contracts is carraed out if there

is objective evidence that an event has occurred that causes impairment after initial recognition of assets

and that this event causing impairment has an impact on future cash flows of the asset that can be reliably

estimated.

Fair value of financial instruments

lf the price for a financial inslrument is not quoted, or if, for any reason, fair value cannol be reliably

determined on the basis of market prices, the Company determines fair value by applying valuation

techniques except for nonjisted equity instruments. These technlques involve the reference to recent

transactions, the reference to the fair value of other instruments that are basically the same and the

analysis of discounted cash flows.
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5. REINSURANCE REVENUE

Reinsurance premium, domestic

Reinsurance premium, foreign

Change in unearned premium
Reinsurance revenue arising from the reinsurance contncts
,ssued

Reinsurance premium ceded to reinsurers

Change in unearned premiums ceded to reinsurers

Reinsurance premium ceded to reinsurers, net

6. REINSURANCE CLAIMS AND EXPENSES

Reinsurance claims and expenses, domestic

Reinsurance claims and expenses, foreign

Change in the provision for incuned but not reported claims

Change in the provision for reported but not settled claims

Change in the provision for bonuses, discounts and premiums

Reinsurance claims and expetsas

Reinsurance claims and expenses covered by reinsurers

Change in the provision for incurred but not reported claims

Change in the provision for reported but not settled claims

Change in the provision for bonuses, discounts and premiums

Reinsurance claims and expenses covered by reinsurerc, net

7. INVESTMENT INCOME - GOMPANY

lnterest on bank deposits

Rent income

lnterest on financial assets held to maturity

Dividends

Gains on sale of financial instauments

lncome from sale of tangible assets and investment property

Realized gains from sale of associate (Note 17)

2018

48,371 ,163
4,855,517

(1,007,356)

52,219,321

(29,802,567)

518,51 0

(29,284,0571

22,935,267

2017

45,291,202

6.137.174

538,659

51,967,035

(27,374,561)

270,697

(27,103,864)

24,863,171

2018

21,888,262

3,638,448
(2,283,565)

3,986,584

604.901

27,834,630

(10,067,266)

1,850,236

(2,822,683)

(166,690)

(1 1 ,206,403)

16,628,227

20'17

26.444.153

3,035,026

5,558,887

6,878,546
(1,243,54't)

11,273,071

(13,658,703)

(4,825,045)

(5,990,583)

143,'178

(24,331 ,1 53)

16,941,918

2018

559,398

217,074

97 ,929
91,763

15,914

2017

693,101

216,574

93,268

158,933

6,2'10

1 1,933,1 18

982,078 13,',t01 ,204
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8. INVESTMENT INCOME - THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATES

lnterest on bank deposits

Rent income

lnteresl on financial assets held to maturity

Dividends

Gains on sale of financial instruments

lncome from sale of tangible assets and investment prope8
Realized gains from sale of associate

2018

559,398

2'17 ,074
97 ,929
91,763
'15,914

2017

693,101

216,574

93,268

158,933

445,454

6,2'10

1,613,540

9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Decrease in provisions for other employee benefils, net
Collected impaired reinsurance premium receivables and claims
recovered from reinsurers (Note 22)

Collected impaired other receivables (Note 23)

Other

10. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Gross salaries

Services

Depreciation (Notes 15 and 16)

Other employee benefits

Memberships

Fees to members of Supervisory Board and Audit Committee
Material and energy

Maintenance

Costs of payment transactions

Advertising and entertainment

Taxes

lnsurance premiums

Donations and scholarships

Provisions for other employee benefits

Disposal of tangible assets

Other expenses

982,078

2018

99,926

1 ,706

2017

482,285

219,220
7.659 '1.851

't09,29'.1 703,356

2018

1,578,755

390,302

365,954

205,846

191,160

84,469

54,899

47 ,054
43,235

32,463

22,451

14,966

10,300

2017

2,347 ,013
392,675

375,332
'175,378

193,576

94,848

58,183

64,664

101,957

44,875
'18,606

20,339

1 1,69't

35,270

2,668

7 ,547 1,725

3,049,.t(,'l 3,938,E00
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11. INVESTMENT LOSSES

Write-off of unrecoverable losses on linancial assets available for
sale (Note 18)

201a

12. OTHER EXPENSES
2018.

lmpairment losses claims receivables (Note 22)

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Total tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and can be summarized as follows:

2017

337.000

337,000

2017.

4.639

4,639

Company Company
and and

associates assoclates company Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

't66,817 1,398,732 166,817 1,398,732

166,817 1,398,732 '166,817 1,398,732

Cunent income tax

lncome tax

The taxable income can be reconciled to the profit per the statement of profit or loss as follows:
Company

and
Company

and
assoclates associates Company

2018 20',17 2018

1,804,859

180,486

8,945

(22,614\

166,817

9.24o/o

Company
2017

13,697,69
1

1,369,769

46,592

(17 ,629)

1,398,732

10.2'to

Profit before income tax 2,119,579 2,558,510

lncome tax expense at 10% - statutory rate 211,958 255,851

Effect of non-deductible expenses 8,945 46,592

Revenues recognised in previous periods - 1,148,766

Effect of non-taxable income (54,086) (52,477)

lncome tax

Effective tax rate for the year

166,817 1,398,732

7.870/o 54.66%
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I.I. EARNII{GS PER SHARE
Company Company

and and Company Company
assoclates assoclates

2018 2017 2018 2017

Net profit available to the shareholders 1,552,762 12,U7,442 1,638,042 12,298,959
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares during the year 18,645 18,645 18,645 18,645

Basic earnlngs per shal€ 1U.73 678.33 87.85 659.54

Diluted eamings p€r share arc not presented as the Company has not issued dilutive equity instruments.
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I5. PROPERTY, PLANTAND EQUIPMENT, AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

cosT
At 3l December 2016

Additions

Disposals and sale

At 3'l December 2017
Additions

At 31 December 2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 31 December 2016

Depreciation

Disposals and sale

At 31 December 2017

Depreciation

At 31 December 20i8

CARRYING VALUE

At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

Equipment and
Land Buildings furniture

50,63'1

120

1,17'l

34,382

Electronic
equipment Other

381

13.632

624,67 4
43,0'16 12,408

Total

243,457153,651

- _ (104,765) (04,765\
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

cosT
At 31 December 2016

Disposals and sale

At 31 December 2017

Disposals and sale

At 31 December 2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Balance as of 31 December 2016

Depreciation

Disposals and sale

Balance as of 3'l December 20'17

Depreciation

Disposals and sale

Balance as of 3l December2018

CARRYING VALUE

At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

Company
name
DUF Prof-in
d.o.o.
Sarajevo
ASA

- (23,24',t1 _ (23,2411

81,650 4,386,159 4,467,809

Land

81,650

Buildings

4,409,400

Total

4,491,050

- 1,026,338

- '131,875

% associates associates ComPanY

31 December 31 December 31 December

1,026,338

131,875

2018

2,494,696

20'17

2,382,993

20'18

678,529

Company

31 December
20'17

678,529

131 ,585

e,. A^n a 110 a12 3.'192.462

ln May 2017, the Company has sold garage located in Kolodvorska street no 11A, Sara.ievo

The Management believes that the carrying amounts of investment property recorded at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in the financial statements are approximate to its

fair value.

17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Company's investments in its associates using equity method are as follows:
Voting GomPanY ComPanY
interest and and

Business
Fund

management
company 35.39

osiguranje
d.d.Sarajevo Insurance 2o.oo 1,826,834 1,623,817 I,200,000 1,200'000

4,321,530 4,006,810 'l'878,529 ',1,878'529

Reporting period date for all associates is 31 December'
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17. TNVESTMENTS lN ASSOCTATES (CONTINUED)

Summary of financial information of the Company's associates is presented below:
31 December

2018

Total revenue

Result for the period

Share in profit of associates

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Share in net assets of associates

Movement in investments in associates can be presented as follows:

24,178,669

1.986.764

446,204

38,762,950

(22,578,986)

16,r 83,964

4,321,530

31 December
2017

19,769,575

I ,390,506

348,483

32,405,003
(17,280,518)

't5,124,485

4,006,810

Company
and

Company
and

Balance at the beginning of the year
Share in total comprehensive income of
associates

Sale of shares during the year

Balance at the end of the year

associates associates

at equity method

2018 20',t7

4,006,810 16,563,997

314,720 348,483
(12,905,670)

Company
at cost

2018

1,878,529

Company

2017

3,296,535

(1 ,418,006)

4,321,530 4,006,810 1,878,529 1,878,529

ln January 2017, the Company sold a 29.05% stake in the company Triglav osiguranje d.d., which

consisted ol 12,077 ordinary shares of the company Triglav osiguranje d.d., for a price of KM 1,105.5 per

share. The total selling price was KM 13,351,123.5. The realized sales value of shares is KM 11,933,117.5

higher than the book value of shares (Note 7), and the difference is recorded as a gain from the sale of

financial assets. The buyer of these shares is the company Triglav INT d.d. Ljubljana.
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE.FOR.SALE

Available fo. sale

Adriatic osiguranje d.d.,
Sarajevo

Raiffeisen BALANS, Sarajevo

ZIF Prof plus d.d., Saralevo
Osiguratelna Polisa, Skopje,
Macedonia
Sarajevo osiguranje d.d.,
Sarajevo

Union banka d.d., SarEevo
Sava reosiguranje d.d.,
Ljubljana, Slovenia.d., Sarajevo

Conny d.o.o., Belgrade, Serbia
Privredna banka Sarajevo d.d.
SarEevo

Raiffeisen CASH

Principal
activity

lnsurance
Open investment

fund

lnvestment fund

lnsurance

lnsurance

Banking

Reinsurance

Trading

Banking
Open

investment fund

Proportion of
ownership
interest (%)

31 December
2018

5.2oo/o

2.52o/o

4.44o/o

1 .45o/o

oA8%

0.001o/o

43.0Oo/o

0.02o/o

31 December
2017

1,155,453

510,881

298,633

425,077

336,960

100,025

15,451

4,269

't,'t44

3,012,425

5,860,318

2017

2,220,116

477 ,202
(337,000)

3,500,000

5,860,318

31 December
20't7

2,750,503

3l December
20'18

1 ,277 ,406

488,282

459,435

425,006

443,439

50,1 1 8

14,962

4,269

I ,430

Movements in the fair value of shares were as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year

Fair value gain

lmpairment allowance (Note 1 1)

(Sale) / purchase during the year

Balance at end of the year

19. FINANCIALASSETSHELD-TO-MATURITY

3,164,347

2018

5,860,318

304,029

(3,000,0qoj

3,164,347

31 December
2014

Bonds of the Federation of Bosnia and Hezegovina ("FBjH") 4,753.658

4,753,658 2,750,503

ln 2015, Company purchased 1,400 bonds issued by the Ministry of Finance of FB|H, with nominal value of

KM 1,400,000. Those bonds purchased in 2015 bear annual interest of 3.90%; the maturity date is 27

November 2022. ln 2016, the Company purchased 1,000 bonds issued by the Ministry of Finance of FB|H,

with nominal value of KM 1 ,000,000. Bonds purchased in 20'16 bear annual interest in the range of 3.6% to

3.95%, with the maturity date of 21 December 2021 . ln 2017, the Company purchased 350 bonds issued by

the Sarajevo Canton with nominal value of KM 350,000. Expected return on these bonds is in the range of

2.50%-2.90o/o, while the maturity date is 3'1 May 2020. ln 2018, the company purchased 20,000 bonds

issued by JP Autoceste FB|H, with nominal value of KM 2,000,000. Maturity date of bonds purchased in

2018 is 21 December 2020, while they bear interest rate of 2.6%.
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20. DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS, NET

Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred reinsurance commission

21, DEPOSITS

Raiffeisen Bank d.d. Sarajevo, 4 deposits due in the period from 3
February 2019 to 24 August 2021, bearing interest wilhin the range
from 0.65% to 2.00% p.a,
Ziraat Bank BH d.d Sarajevo,7 deposits due in the period from 28
February 2019 to 24 August 2021, bearing interest within the range
from 0.95% to 1 .95% p.a.
NLB Banka d.d. Tuzla, 7 deposits due in the period from 2 March
20'19 to 14 September 2019, bearing interest within the range from
0.60/o to 2.10o/o P.a.
lntesa Sanpaolo Banka d.d. Bosna iHercegovina,6 deposits due in
the period from 6 February 2019 to 28 April 2020, bearing interest
within the range from 1.05% to 1 .75o/o p.a.
Sberbank BH d,d. Sarajevo, 7 deposits due in the period from 6
February 2019 to 19 June 2019, bearing interest within the range
from 0.68% to 1.30o/o p.a.
Bosna Bank lnlernational d.d. Sarajevo, 2 deposits due in the
period from 30 April 2019 to 25 May 2019, bearing interest within
the range from 0.7Sok to 1.00o/o p.a.
Sparkasse Bank d.d. Sarajevo, 5 deposits due in the period irom 6
February 20'19 to 5 July 2019, bearing interest within the range from
0.90o/o lo 1 .20o/o P.a.
Unicredit Bank d.d. Mostar, 3 deposits matured in the period from 5
October 2018 to l6 November 2018, bearing interest within the
range from 2.10% to 2.20o/o p.a.

Deposits include due and accrued interest receivables.

31 December 31 December
20't8 2017

3,019,551 3,017 .612
(1 ,3s6,017) (1 ,452,620\

1,663,534 I,564,992

31 Oecember 31 December
2018 2017

8,348,295 6,200,904

6.467,298 6,085,108

6,314,921 7,499,981

5,170,466 7.251.033

4,992,824 6,917,293

3,106,776 3j09,272

3,093,034 3,093,034

- t,564,664

37,493,6't4 41,721,289
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22. RECEIVABLES FOR REINSURANCE PREMIUM AND FOR CLAIMS RECOVERED FROM
REINSURERS

Reinsurance premium receivables - domeslic

Receivables for claims recovered from reinsurer

Reinsurance premium receivables - foreign

Bad and doubtful receivables

Less: lmpairment allowance

Balance at beginning of the year

lncrease (Note 12)

Collected impaired receivables (Note 9)

Balance at the end of the year

U ndue
'l - 90 days

91 - 180 days

181 - 360 days

Over 36 days

31 December
2018

15,149,886

621,038

481 ,619
1 18,069

31 December
2017

12,248,805

313,941

522,047

119,77 5

(118,069) (119,775\

16,252,543 13,084,793

Movement in impairment allowance for reinsurance premium receivables and for claims recovered from

reinsurers, were as follows:

20't8 2017

597,421

4,639
(1,706) (482,285)

118,069 't't9,775

The impairment of receivables is done in accordance with the legal regulations defined by lhe Regulator.

The Company does not hold any collateral over these balances. Valuation and recognition of the allowance

for impairment losses, if any, is done on a yearly basis.

Aging structure of receivables:

119,77s

31 December
2018

13,433,942

2,81 1,305

3,2s1

3,646

399

3'l December
2017

9,637,636

3,446,635

522

'16,252,543 13,084,793
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23. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Commission and brokerage receivables

Other receivables

Bad and doubtful receivables

Less: Allowance for impairment of other receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year

Collected impaired receivables (Note 9)

Balance at the end of the year

24. OTHER ASSETS

Prepaid insurance expenses

Other prepaid expenses

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash with domestic banks - KM accounts

Cash with domestic banks - foreign currency accounts

Cash on hand

Cash with foreign banks - foreign currency accounts

o a'l? I,472
4,479 3.507

13,6',t2 11,979

31 December
2018

206,435

2,339

385,732

(385,732)

3'l December
2017

288,398

2,713

385,732

(385,732)

204.774

changes in allowance for impairment of other receivables can be shown as follows:

29'1.111

2018

385,732

385,732

31 December
2018

20't7

604,952
(219,220\

385,732

31 December
2017

3l December
2018

2,533,685

343,331

1 ,294
246

31 December
2017

1 ,921 ,801

1 ,439,787
1 ,034

824

2,878,556 3,363,446
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26. SHARE CAPITAL

18,645 ordinary shares of par value KM 340 each
(2017: 18,645 shares of per value KM 340 each)

Triglav osiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Sarajevo osiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Euroherc osiguranje d.d. Zagreb, Croatia

Adriatic osiguranje d.d. SarEevo

Union banka d.d. Sarajevo

UniCredit Bank d.d. Mostar

lntesa Sanpaolo Banka d.d. Bosna i Hercegovina

Other legal entities

Private persons

2018 3l December 2017
Share % Share

amount share amount

31 December
2018

6,339,300

December
2017

31

6,339.300

6,339,300 6,339,300

The Assembly of Bosna Reosiguranje d.d. at an exlraordinary meeting held on 15 February 2016, adopted

the decision to withdraw 700 treasury shares and reduce the Company's equity accordingly, due to inability

to sell the shares within the legally deflned timeframe. Before this decision was adopted, the share capital

amounted to KM 6,577,300, and was decreased by KM 238.000, which is the nominal value of 700 treasury

shares. After the withdrawal of treasury shares the value of the Company's share capital amounts to KM

6,339,300.

Ownership of ordinary shares is as follows:

31 December
o/"

share

13.6s

12.74

10.97

8.55

5.87

3.19

0.05

't0.73

865,300 13.65

807,500 12.74

695,300 10.97

542,300 8.55

372.300 5.87

202,300 3.19

3,400 0.05

680,000 1 1.03

865,300

807,500

695,300

542,300

372,300

202,300

3,400

699,040

34.25 2j70,900 33.95 2,151 ,860

100.00 6,339,300 'r00.00 6,339,300

27. REINSURANCE PREMIUM AND CLAIMS PAYABLE

Claims payable, domestic

Reinsurance premium payables

Claims payable, foreign

6,551 ,128
5,531,980

407 .217

't2,490,325

31 December
2017

5,203,361

4,027,663

418,1 55

9,649,179

31 December
20'18
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REINSURANCE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Gross

Provision for unearned premium

Provision for claims reported but not settled

Provision for claims incurred but not reported

Provision for bonuses, discounts and premiums

Total insurance liabilities, gross

Covered by reinsurers
Provision for unearned premium

Provision for claims reported but not settled

Provision for claims incurred but not reported

Provision for bonuses, discounts and premiums

Total insurance assefs, gross

Provision for unearned premium

Provision for claims reported but not settled

Provision for claims incurred but not reported

Provision of bonuses, discounts and premiums

Total insurance liabilities, net

29, OTHER LIABILITIES

(549,769) (987,980)

25,881,623 24,223,994

3'1 December
2014

18,220,336

JO, i/ O /,ZOC

43,880,137

(629,641)

98,238,097

(7 ,244,194)
(28,236,855)

(36,955,297)

3l December
20't7

17 ,212,981
32,780,68'l

46,163,702
('t,234,542)

94,922,822

(6,725,685)

(25 ,41 4 ,172)
(38,805,533)

79.872 246.562

Liabilities based on commissions

Employee payables

Liabilities toward suppliers

Liabilities for VAT

Advances received

Other 14.506

3,332,088 3,721,595

lnterest is not charged on the trade payables. The Company has financial risk management policies in

place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe. The Company has no overdue

liabilities nor has given any collateral for their timely repayment.

(72,356,47 4l

10,976,142

8,530,410

6,924,840

31 December
2018

3,182,799

1 18,964

12,043

J,t to

(70,698,828)

10,487 ,296
7,366,s09

7,358,169

31 December
2017

2,701 ,806
959,218

o E?1

3,694

30,788

16,558
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had the following related party transactions with related parties, who are

related due to the Company's equity share. These transactions are related to the reinsurance premium and

dividend income earned and claims paid, as well as related assets and liabilitles at the reporting period

date. The transactions are recorded at fair exchange amount, which is the amount agreed to between lhe
related parties.

lntesa Sanpaolo Banka d.d. Bosna i

Hercegovina 109,137 134,970 8,967

ASA osiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Sarajevo osiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Adriatic osiguranje d.d. Saralevo

Unicredit Bank d.d. Mostar

ASA osiguranje d.d. Sarajevo

Sarajevo osiguranie d.d. Sarajevo

Adriatic osiguranje d.d. SarEevo
Union banka d.d. Sarajevo

UniCredit Bank d.d. Mostar

lncome
2018 2017

4,865,498 4,327,458
7,533,044 7,257 ,307
935,104 700,744

27 ,592 37 ,434

2018 2017

'r ,791 ,894 1,604,980

3,321,058 1,929,195

275,647 178,806

1 ,O57 1 ,057
40,256 1,910,158

Expenses
2018 2017

3,667,970 3,037.356

7 ,270,064 11,379,798

517 ,357 624,001

1,390 '16,10'l

1,690

13,470,375 12,457,913 11,465,748 15,058,946

The Company has sold vehicle to the Board member with loss arising in amount of KM 2,668. Taxes and

contributions were paid regarding this loss.

At year-end the following amounts were due to or due (presented for the Company) from related parties:

Receivables Liabilities
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2018

1,670,733

3,008,945

102,445

1,390

2017

't,520,157

1 ,388,207

61,096

16,1 01
lntesa Sanpaolo Banka d.d. Bosna i

Hercegovina 7,393,939 8,'103,098 8,967 1,690

12,A23,A51 't3,727,294 4,792,480 2,987,251

Management remuneration

The remuneration of directors and olher members of key management during the year was as follows:

20'18 2017

Management

Supervisory Board

't,210,767 6?8,626
68.900 68.900

697,526,l,279,667
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3'1. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS

lnsurance risks

The Company signs active reinsurance contracts on the basis of which insurance risk is transferred from its

clients - insurance or reinsurance companies to the Company, as well as passive reinsurance contracts for

the transfer of insurance risk from the Company to other reinsurance institutions.

The nature of every particular insurance risk is such that it is unpredictable and fortuitous. Reinsurance

operations relate to various methods of covering individual risks by means of facultative reinsurance

contracts; thus the risk is reflected in the possibility of the realisation of damage whose monetary value

cannot be determined before it occurs.

When reinsuring entire portfolios or parts of portfolios of one or several different types of insurance provided

by an insurance or reinsurance company, the basic risk arises from the fact that total claims and

compensation payments disbursed in accordance to contracts may exceed the amount paid in as premium

or the liability commitments for each individual risk, due to recurrence or extent of the damage.

Past experiences have shown that larger portfolios, when reinsured, tend to produce smaller discrepancies

from expectation; therefore the Company aims to develop its operations in such a direction as lo increase

the portfolios of some types of reinsurance by increasing the number of assignors, which contributes to

better personal and geographic dispersion which is favourable to the business position of the Company as a

regional reinsurance company.

The Company has not been exposed to potentially numerous claims arising from responsibility for the use

of asbestos; elimination of asbestos is one of the standard eliminations in the business of the Company.

Reinsurance from responsibility (with the exception of responsibility for motor vehicles) and life insurance

policies constitute a marginal portion of the Company's total operations, due to the low volume of such

reinsurance in the present market.

The basic operations include: reinsurance from accidents of property, from motor vehicle responsibility -
both within the country and "green card" reinsurance - and comprehensive motor vehicle insurance.

The Company transfers excessive risk on to other reinsurance companies. For particular types of insurance

the max'mum risk exposure is limited through contracts on insurance from excess damage, as well as from

cumulative claims, depending on the requirements arising from this particular risk.

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32.'l Categories of financial instruments
31 December

2018

Financial assets
Deposits and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)

Financial assets available-for-sale

Financial assets held{o-maturity

Financial liabilities
At amortised cost

4.753,658

65,001,006

15,822.4't0

57,083,001

3,164,347

31 December
2017

58,460,639

5,860,3'18

2,750,503

67,071,450

13,367,080

13,367,08015,822,4',t0
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32. FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS(CONTINUED)

32.2 Financial risk management obrectives

The Finance function provides services to the business co-ordinates access to domestic and international

financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company

through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks

include market risk (including currency risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash

flow interest rate risk.

32.3 Market risk

The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange

rates and interest rates (see below). Market risk exposures are supplemented by sensitivity analysis. There

has been no change to the Company's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risk.

32.4 Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to

exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters

utilizing forward foreign exchange contracts.

The amounts of the monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Company at the reporting period date

denominated in foreign currencies were as follows:

(amounts in KM)

EUR

USD

GBP

Assets Liabilities

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

32.4.1 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk related to EUR, USD and GBP. The following table details

the Company's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in KlVl against these currencies. 10% is the

sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel. The

sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts

their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below

indicates an increase in profit and other equity where KlVl strengthens 10% against the relevant currency.

Fot a 10yo weakening of KM against the relevant currency there would be an equal and opposite impact on

the profit and other equity, and the balances below would be negative.

Gain or loss

2018

39,038,261

15,372

65

2017

43,779,042
'168,796

2018

5,939,100

5,846

2017

4,381,336

72,258

2,026

2017

3,939,771

I,054
(203)

Effects of change in EUR rate

Elfects of change in USD rate

Effects of change in GBP rate

2018

3,905,488

1 ,537

6
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32. FTNANCTALTNSTRUMENTS(CONTTNUED)

32.4 Foreign currency risk management (continued)

32.4.1 Foreign c urrency sensitivity analysis (continued)

ln the Management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange

risk related to change of EUR exchange rate since in accordance with the Law on Cenkal Bank of Bosnia

and Herzegovina the Convertible Mark ("KM") is officially tied to the Euro. Change in lhe exchange rate

would require the amendments of the law and approval by Parliamentary Assembly of Bosnia and

Hezegovina.

32.5 lnterest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk as it places funds at fixed interest rates. The Company's

exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in liquidity risk

management section, Note 32.7.

32.5.1 lnterest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-

derivative instruments at the reporting period date. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of

financial instruments outstanding at the reporting period date was outstanding for the whole year. A 50

basis point increase or decrease (0.5%) is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key

managemenl personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

lf interest rates had been 50 basis points (0.5%) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant. the

net result of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 would increase / decrease by KlVl 187,468

(2017 . KM 218,020).

32.6 Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on ats contractual obligations resulting in financial

loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties

and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from

defaults.

The Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the

aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is

controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the Management Board annually.

The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of

counterparties having similar characteristics. The Company defines counterparties as having similar

characteristics if they are related entities.

lvlaximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of financial assets presented in financial reports (Note

32.1) decreased by impairment losses.
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32. FTNANCTALTNSTRUMENTS(CONTINUED)

32.7 Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Management Board which has built an

appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short medium and

long{erm funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by

maintaining adequate reserve, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

32.7.1 Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity of the Company for its non-derivative financial

assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial

assets including interest that will be earned on those assets except where the Company anticipates that the

cash flow will occur in a ditferent period.

Matuity of non-derivative financial assets
Weighted
average
effective
interest Up to
rate l month

31 December
2018
Non-interest
bearing
Fixed interest rate
instruments 1 .31%

19,589,387 3j64,347 22,7 53,734

30.709.859 1,858,039 4 850 000 37 ,417 ,898

31 December
2017
Non-interest
bearing
Fixed interest rate
instruments

16,448,239 291,111 5,860,318 22,599,668

1.790/o 2.49'1.509 6.700.296 6.234,415 30,051,514 - 45,477 ,734

18,939,748 6,991,407 6,234,415 35,9',11,832 - 6a,077,402

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities of the

Company. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based

on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

1to6 5to12 1to5 Overs
months months years years Total
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32. FTNANCIALINSTRUMENTS(CONTINUED)

32.7 Liquidity risk management (continued)

32.7.1 Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Matuity for non-deivative financial liabilities
Weighted
average [Jo toefiectrve I monthinterest

rate

1 to 5 Over 5 Totalyears years
1to6

months

6to
12

months

3l December
2018
Non-interest
bearing

TOTAL
31 December
2017
Non-interest
bearing

TOTAL 11.818,371 't,539,178 9,s31 - - 13,367,080

15,215,177 607,233 - - - 15'822'410

818,371 1,539,178
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33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

33.1 Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Company's financial assels and financial liabilities are measured al fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information

about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
Financial
assets /
financial
liabilities

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit and loss
(see Note 17)

Fair value
hierarchyFair value as at

31 December 2018

Listed equity securities on stock exchanges in Bosnia and
Herzegovina:

. Adriatic osiguranje d.d., Sarajevo - KM 1,277 ,406

. Sarajevo osiguranje d.d., Sarajevo - KM 443,439

. ZIF Prof plus d.d., Sarajevo - KM 459,435

. Union banka d.d., Sadevo - KM 50,118

. Privredna banka Sarajevo d.d., Sarajevo - KM 1,430
Freely Transferable Securities:

. open lnvestment Fund with a public offering Raiffeisen
CASH - KM O

. Open lnvestment Fund with a public offering Raiffeisen
BALANCE _ KM 488,282

3l December 2017

Listed equity securiiies on slock exchanges in Bosnia and
Herzegovina:

. Bosna Sunce osiguranje d.d., Sarajevo - KM
1 ,155,453

. Sarajevo osiguranje d.d., Sarajevo - KM 336,960

. ZIF Prof plus d.d., Saralevo - KM 298,633

. Union banka d.d., Sarajevo - KM 100,025

. Privredna banka Sarajevo d.d., Sarajevo - KN4 Level 1

1,144
Freely Transferable Securities:

. Open lnvestment Fund with a public offering
Raiffeisen CASH - KM 3,o12,425

Level 1

Level 2

. Open lnvestment Fund with a public offering
Raiffeisen BALANCE - KM 510,88'l

Listed equity securities on stock exchanges in olher countries: Listed equity securities on stock exchanges in other
. Sava reosiguranje d.d., Ljubljana, Slovenia - KNI 14,962 countries:

. Sava reosiguranje d.d., Ljubljana, Slovenia - KM
12,928

Listed equity securities on stock exchanges in other
countries:

. Osiguratelna Polisa, Skoplje, Macedonia - KM
425,O77

. Conny d.o.o., Beograd, Serbia - KM 4,269

Valuation technique(s) and
key input(s)

Quoted bid prices in an aclive
market.

Quoted bid prices in an active
market.

Discounted cash flow, by
considering the last available

rale on owned or similar equity
securities as yield rate

Listed equity securilies on stock exchanges in other countries:
. Osiguratelna Polisa, Skoplje, Macedonia - KM 425,006
. Conny d.o.o., Beograd, Serbia - KlVl 4,269

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.
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33. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

33.2 Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at

fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

Excepl as detailed in the following table, the Management consider that the carrying amounts of financial

assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial stalemenls approximate their fair values.
31 December 2018 3l December 2017

Carrying amount F!!y4!Ce Carrying amou( Fair value

Financial assets

Loans and receivables:

- deposits 37 ,493,614 36,940,086 41,721,289 41,125,037

Financial assets
Loans and receivables:

- deposits

Total

36,940,086

36,940,086

36,940,086

36,940,086

The fair values of the financial assets included in Level 2 category above have been determined in

accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the

most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties

34. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Management and aulhorised for issue on I April 2019.
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